
AGENDA (ANNOTATED) 

TENNESSEE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

JUNE 15, 2022, 10:40 AM 
EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE ROOM, STATE CAPITOL, G LEVEL

* Items with an asterisk denote action required by the Audit Committee

1. (Treasurer) Call Meeting to Order

2. (Treasurer) Approval of the AC Meeting Minutes June 15, 2021 (Pg. 2) *

3. (Michael Campbell) Review Audit Reports Issued by Comptroller’s Office

a. Discuss TLDA Audit Report (Pg. 5)

b. Discuss Clean Water State Revolving Fund Audit Report (Pg. 33)

4. (Alicia West) Review Financial Statements including Significant Accounting & Reporting 
Standards (Pg. 47)

5. (Adeniyi Bakare) Status of the FY2021 EPA PERS Process

6. (Sandi Thompson) Risk Assessments Memo (Pg. 48)

a. 2021 SLF Risk Assessment (Pg. 49)

b. 2021 TDEC Water Resource Risk Assessment (Pg. 57)

7. (Sandi Thompson) Discuss Management’s Responsibility to Prevent, Detect & Report 
Fraud, Waste & Abuse

8. (Sandi Thompson) Discuss Comptroller Hotline

9. (Earle Pierce) Audit Committee Responsibilities Calendar (Pg. 66)

10. (Earle Pierce) Current Internal Auditing Article (Pg. 67)

11. (Treasurer) Other Business

12. (Treasurer) Adjournment

1



1 

TENNESSEE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

June 15, 2021 

The Tennessee Local Development Authority (TLDA) Audit Committee met on Tuesday, June 15, 2021. The 
meeting began at 2:30 p.m. in the State Capitol, Executive Conference room. 

The following members were present: 

• David H. Lillard, Jr., State Treasurer
• Butch Eley, Commissioner of Finance and

Administration

• Tre Hargett, Tennessee Secretary of State
• Pat Wolfe, Senate Appointee

Others present were: 

• Sandra Thompson, Director, Office of State
and Local Finance

• Alicia West, Program Accountant, Office of
State and Local Finance

• Michael Campbell, State Auditor, Office of
the Comptroller of the Treasury

• Earle Pierce, Director of Internal Audit, TN
Department of Treasury

• Adeniyi Bakare, State Revolving Fund
Director, TN Department of Environment
and Conservation (TDEC)

• Felicia Freeman, Environmental Manager,
TN Department of Environment and
Conservation (TDEC)

Call Meeting to Order 

Treasurer Lillard called the meeting to order and asked for a roll call to determine a quorum. The results 
of the roll call confirmed a quorum was present for the meeting. 

Roll Call: Treasurer Lillard-Present, Secretary Hargett-Present, Dr. Kenneth Moore-Absent, Mr. Pat Wolfe-
Present, Commissioner Butch Eley-Present.  

Approval of Meeting Minutes 

Treasurer Lillard presented the minutes from the June 25, 2020 TLDA Audit Committee meeting for 
approval. There were no other recommended changes. Secretary Hargett motioned to accept the minutes 
as presented and Commissioner Eley seconded the motion. Mr. Pierce performed a roll-call vote and the 
motion passed unanimously. 

Treasurer Lillard-Aye, Secretary Hargett-Aye, Mr. Wolfe-Aye, Commissioner Eley-Aye 

Review Audit Reports Issued by Comptroller’s Office 

Treasurer Lillard recognized Michael Campbell from State Audit to review the audit reports for the 
Tennessee Local Development Authority (TLDA) and the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF). Both 
the TLDA and CWSRF received unmodified opinions on their June 30, 2020 financial statements. No 

2

Agenda Item #2



2 

material errors were found in the financial statements. There were no findings and no exceptions noted 
with internal controls or compliance.  

Review Financial Statements Including Significant Accounting and Reporting Standards 

Treasurer Lillard recognized Alicia West to review the financial statements for the TLDA and the SRF 
programs. Ms. West presented an overview of the financial statements.  

Review of Program Evaluation Reports from the EPA 

Treasurer Lillard recognized Adeniyi Bakare, State Revolving Fund Director from TDEC to discuss reports 
from the EPA. Mr. Bakare reviewed Program Evaluation Reports (PERs) from the Environmental Protection 
Agency for studies conducted in fiscal year 2020 with reports dated as of March 2021. The reports covered 
the Clean Water State Revolving Fund and the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. The 2020 PERs 
reports contained no findings or deficiencies. The PERS report for the drinking water SRF program included 
two recommendations. Mr. Bakare reviewed the recommendations with the Committee and the status of 
SRF’s efforts to address them.  

State and Local Finance 2020 Risk Assessments 

Treasurer Lillard recognized Sandra Thompson to discuss the Office of State and Local Finance (SLF) and 
Division of Water Resources 2020 Risk Assessments. Ms. Thompson stated the risk assessments cover 
risks and controls as required by the Financial Integrity Act. A memo regarding the act was included in the 
materials. Ms. Thompson discussed some of the testing performed to ensure controls documented in the 
risk assessments worked as intended.  

Discuss Management’s Responsibility to Prevent, Detect and Report Fraud, Waste and Abuse 

Treasurer Lillard recognized Sandra Thompson to speak about management’s responsibility to prevent, 
detect, and report fraud, waste, and abuse. Ms. Thompson stated the tone at the top is the first line of 
defense for preventing fraud, waste, and abuse. Ms. Thompson noted she was not aware of any instances 
of reported fraud, waste, or abuse within the Office of State and Local Finance. Department personnel are 
aware risk exists with performing their duties. Those risks are monitored and mitigated daily by SRF 
leadership.  

Discuss Comptroller Hotline 

Treasurer Lillard recognized Sandra Thompson to discuss the Comptroller’s Fraud, Waste, and Abuse 
(FWA) Hotline. Employees and members of the community are encouraged to call the Comptroller’s toll-
free hot line to report any instances of suspected waste and abuse of government funds. Citizens are 
referred to the hotline when they have complaints. 

Discuss Current Internal Audit Article 

Treasurer Lillard recognized Earle Pierce to present a current article from the Institute of Internal Auditors 
entitled, “Control During the Pandemic”. Mr. Pierce summarized the article with a brief discussion of the 

3



3 

challenges during the pandemic and the opportunities to review new risks and controls needed to address 
working remotely. He discussed how Internal Audit can work with management to key in on these risks 
during the annual risk assessment process. 

Opportunity for Public Comment 

Treasurer Lillard opened the floor to any comments from the public regarding the meeting. No comments 
were made. 

Other Business 

Treasurer Lillard opened the floor for any other business to be brought before the Committee. No new 
business was presented. 

Adjournment 

Secretary Hargett motioned to adjourn. Commissioner Eley seconded the motion. A roll call vote was 
made to adjourn the meeting and the motion passed unanimously. 

Treasurer Lillard-Aye, Secretary Hargett-Aye, Mr. Wolfe-Aye, Commissioner Eley-Aye 

Treasurer Lillard adjourned the meeting at 2:42 p.m. 

Approved: 

David H. Lillard, Jr. 
TLDA Audit Committee Chairman 

4



5

Agenda Item #3a



6



7



8



9



                                             10



                                             11



                                             12



13



                                             14



                                             15



16



17



18



19



20



                                             21



22



23



24



25



                                             26



                                             27



28



29



                                             30



31



32



33

Agenda Item #3b



34



35



                                             36



37



                                             38



39



40



                                             41



42



                                             43



                                             44



                                             45



                                             46



Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

TLDA Programs 

1. State Loan Program Fund: (Water/Sewer)

• 4 borrowers

• 4 loans outstanding

• $1,250,000 bonds outstanding (Bonds mature 2029)

2. State Infrastructure Fund (Transportation)

• 1 borrower

• Collections:

▪ $62,994 loan principal

▪ $26,556 interest

Operating Income: $468,109 
Net Position at June 30, 2021: $17,499,302 
No new loans are being issued for these programs. 

State Revolving Fund Loan Programs 

1. Clean Water Fund

• Disbursements

▪ $169,558,809

• Collections

▪ $141,445,858 loan principal

▪ $9,926,939 interest

• Net position at June 30, 2021: $1,117,889,634

2. Drinking Water Fund

• Disbursements

▪ $6,813,966

• Collections

▪ $26,668,433 loan principal

▪ $1,482,397 interest

• Net position at June 30, 2021: $209,896,183

• No significant changes to accounting and reporting standards.

47

Agenda Item #4



To: Members of the Tennessee Local Development Authority (TLDA) Audit Committee 

From: Sandi Thompson, Director, Division of State Government Finance (SGF)  

Date: May 16, 2022  

Subject: Risk Assessments 

The management risk assessments for the SGF and the Division of Water Resources are attached. These 

annual reports address agency-wide risk management and internal control requirements of Tenn. Code 

Ann. § 9-18-102, known as the Tennessee Financial Integrity Act, as amended.  

This code requires that each agency of state government and institution of higher education to establish 

and maintain internal controls, to provide reasonable assurance that: 

(1) Obligations and costs are in compliance with applicable law;

(2) Funds, property and other assets are safeguarded against waste, loss,

unauthorized use or misappropriation; and

(3) Revenues and expenditures applicable to agency operations are properly

recorded and accounted for to permit the preparation of accurate and reliable

financial and statistical reports and to maintain accountability over the assets.

To document compliance with the requirements set forth above, the code requires that each agency of 

state government and institution of higher education annually perform a management assessment of risk 

and that the internal controls discussed above be incorporated into such assessment.  

The objectives of the annual risk assessment are: 

(1) to provide accountability for meeting program objectives;

(2) to promote operational efficiency and effectiveness;

(3) to improve reliability of financial statements;

(4) to strengthen compliance with laws, regulations, rules, and contracts and grant

agreements; and

(5) to reduce the risk of financial or other asset losses due to fraud, waste and

abuse.

48

Agenda Item #6



Agenda AC
Responsibilities Documentation Presented By Reference Meeting Date Notes

1 Review significant accounting and reporting standards. Minutes Discussion Alicia West Item #4 6/15/2021

2
Review financial statements and comprehensive annual financial
report.

Minutes Discussion Michael Campbell, State Audit Item #3 6/15/2021

3
Review with management the adequacy of internal controls for
compliance with policies, plans, procedures, laws, and regulations.

FY20 SLF & TDEC Risk Assessments Sandi Thompson Item #6 6/15/2021

4
Understand the scope of external auditors’ review of internal
control.

June 30, 2020 Audit Report Michael Campbell, State Audit Item #3 6/15/2021

5
Review processes in place to assess risk, including fraud risk,
which shall include a review of management's risk assessment
process, in the agency.

FY20 SLF & TDEC Risk Assessments Sandi Thompson Item #6 6/15/2021

6
Inquire of management and auditors about significant risks and
how those risks are managed.

FY20 SLF & TDEC Risk Assessments Sandi Thompson Item #6 6/15/2021

7 Review reports issued by external auditors. Minutes Discussion
Michael Campbell, State Audit
Adeniyi Bakare, TDEC

Items #5 & 6 6/15/2021
SRF Drinking & Clean Water PERS Reports
Comptroller's Audit Report

8
Ensure management has taken appropriate action on audit
recommendations made by the auditors.

Minutes Discussion N/A Item #3 6/15/2021 No audit recommendations

9 Discuss the proposed scope and approach of the external audit. June 30, 2020 Audit Report
Michael Campbell, State Audit
Adeniyi Bakare, TDEC

Item #3 6/15/2021
SRF Drinking & Clean Water PERS Reports
Comptroller's Audit Report

10
Discuss the results of the audit with representatives of the
Comptroller of the Treasury, including any difficulties encountered
during the course of the audit.

Minutes Discussion Michael Campbell, State Audit Item #3 6/15/2021

11
Encourage external auditors to discuss any issues of concern with
the audit committee.

Minutes Discussion Michael Campbell, State Audit Item #3 6/15/2021

12
Immediately report any fraud to the Comptroller of the Treasury’s
office.

Minutes Discussion Sandi Thompson Item #7 6/15/2021

13

Communicate to management their responsibility for preventing,
detecting, and reporting fraud, waste and abuse, and reporting any 
instances of fraud, waste, and abuse to the audit committee and
the Comptroller of the Treasury.

Minutes Discussion Sandi Thompson Item #7 6/15/2021

14
Ensure procedures exist for the receipt, retention, and treatment
of complaints about accounting, internal controls, or auditing
matters.

Minutes Discussion Sandi Thompson Item #8 6/15/2021

15
Regularly update the board about committee activities and make
appropriate recommendations.

Report given at each board meeting following 
AC

Treasurer Lillard N/A 6/15/2021 Delivered by Treasurer at the TLDA Board meeting

16
Periodically review and amend, as necessary, the audit committee
charter.

Exhibit- 4/15/2019 audit committee charter Earle Pierce Tab 2a 6/27/2019

17
Review management’s assertion that internal controls are effective 
and adequate.

FY20 SLF & TDEC Risk Assessments Sandi Thompson Item #6 6/15/2021

18
Evaluate whether management is setting the appropriate ‘control
culture’ and ‘tone at the top’ by communicating the importance of
internal controls and risk management.

Internal Audit Article Earle Pierce Item #9 6/15/2021

19
Provide a mechanism for staff to report any suspected fraud,
abuse or other complaints related to operations to the audit
committee

Minutes Discussion Sandi Thompson Item #8 6/15/2021

TLDA Audit Committee
Responsbilities Calendar

6/15/2022

66

Agenda Item #9



Tone at the Top   |   December 2021 Powered by   

Issue 109 | February 2022Providing senior management, boards of directors, and audit committees 
with concise information on governance-related topics.

TOPTONE
at the

®

Maintaining Excellence in Corporate Governance 

The first year of the COVID-19 pandemic created myriad 
challenges for organizations, but findings from a respected 
survey provided a glimmer of hope amid the gloom. Incremental 
improvements in key 2020 governance measures appeared 
to show organizations rallying to focus on improving how they 
operated. However, a year later, the same survey finds the 
quality of governance may be stagnating as organizations deal 
with unrelenting pandemic disruptions and uncertainty.

The Institute of Internal Auditors’ and Neel Corporate 
Governance Center’s 2021 American Corporate Governance 
Index (ACGI), which surveyed chief audit executives (CAEs) on 
their organizations’ performance on eight Guiding Principles 
of Corporate Governance, saw grades dip in seven of the eight 
categories compared to the previous year. Overall, the ACGI 
score slipped one point from 82 to 81, but maintained its B- 
rating.

Key Takeaways in ACGI Results
While the overall scores appear to reflect some weariness 
from executive leadership, there were findings that boards 
ought to consider as they plan for the coming year: 

Internal audit can have a bene icial impact on governance 
quality. The annual ACGI survey, now in its third year, has 
accumulated sufficient data to identify some correlations 
between company characteristics and governance quality. One 
of the most notable is the indication that governance quality is 
highest among companies where CAEs report administratively 
to the CEO or audit committee. Internal audit is designed to 
provide independent, objective information to leadership, 
and this reporting structure reinforces that role. What’s more, 
because internal audit can provide assurance over a wide 
range of risk areas, it is preferable that the CAE report to the 
full board so that all members benefit from internal audit’s 
insight and advice. 

Strong governance quality was also associated with 
companies that had:

• Strong board independence accompanying a CEO-board
chair duality. 

• Simpler reporting structures and no international
operations.

Shareholder activism is not to be ignored. The number of U.S. 
public shareholder activism campaigns jumped 28% during 
the 2021 proxy season from the 2020 season, returning to pre-
pandemic levels after a decline, according to one assessment. 
ACGI survey results revealed there were significantly fewer 
companies that had not experienced a shareholder campaign 
during the year than was the case in 2020. Contrary to this 
spike in reported shareholder activism, the index saw a 
slight decline year over year in the likelihood of organizations 
considering a wide range of shareholder interests in their 
business decisions. This flies in the face of considerable 
changes in economic, political, and social environments given 
the disruptions of the past two years.

Tone at the Top  |   February 2022

67

https://www.theiia.org/globalassets/documents/content/research/2021-acgi-report.pdf
https://www.theiia.org/globalassets/documents/content/research/2021-acgi-report.pdf


Tone at the Top   |   December 2021 Powered by   

“Many shareholders are seeking a role in shaping the future, and boards may need to 
balance a broader, more diverse range of sometimes competing stakeholder interests in 
making decisions,” according to a Deloitte report published in The Wall Street Journal. 

Board members should be aware of this trend and consider how best to address issues 
that might draw activist interest to their organizations. Their internal audit function can 
offer independent assessments and assurance on critical concerns that may be subject 
to potential shareholder activism before issues arise, minimizing the possible impact and 
giving organizations more time for decision-making on emerging problem areas. 

Keep an eye on ESG. For corporate boards, the 2021 proxy season was an inflection 
point when it came to environmental, social, and governance (ESG) issues, according 
to the National Association of Corporate Directors’ 2022 Governance Outlook. There 
were numerous shareholder activism campaigns focused on environmental concerns 
throughout 2021, and ESG considerations are expected to remain in the forefront in 2022. 
“All companies, regardless of their sector, are experiencing increased investor scrutiny on 
how they approach this issue,” according to a Morrow Sodali survey in 2021. 

According to the ACGI, while some CAEs report that their companies’ vigilance on 
environmental and social issues has led to improvements,  the vast majority say it’s too 
early to tell if their organizations’ efforts are affecting governance or performance. Many 
companies have created board committees or executive-level positions that oversee 
ESG considerations. Boards should remember that their internal audit function is well-
positioned to offer valuable independent assessments of many issues that fall under the 
ESG umbrella. 

Unfortunately, good communication on ESG may be lacking in many companies. CAEs 
did not have strong faith in the quality of different types of ESG information at their 
organizations. A total of 41% thought the quality of ESG information used internally for 
decision-making was fair or poor. Another 31% called this data very good or excellent, 
and 28% thought it was good. When it came to information presented externally to 
shareholders, 34% thought it was fair or poor, 31% found it very good or excellent, and 
34% deemed it good. These numbers point to room for improvement that internal audit 
can help organizations achieve.  

Employee-related governance may need strengthening. The ACGI results found that 
employees were less likely to receive adequate job training and slightly less likely to 
receive incentives to achieve corporate objectives in an ethical manner. Companies were 
also slightly less likely to have sufficient time and money to address crises without cutting 
corners and/or sacrificing long-term performance. If these areas are not reinforced, 
companies could be making themselves vulnerable to future failures in risk management 
and control. 

About The IIA

The Institute of Internal 

Auditors, Inc. is a global 

professional association with 

more than 210,000 members 

in more than  

170 countries and territories. 

The IIA serves as the internal 

audit profession’s chief 

advocate, international 

standard-setter, and principal 

researcher and educator.

The IIA

1035 Greenwood Blvd.  

Suite 401 

Lake Mary, FL 32746 USA

Complimentary 
Subscriptions

Visit www.theiia.org/Tone  

to sign up for your 

complimentary subscription.

Reader Feedback

Send questions/comments to 

Tone@theiia.org.

QUESTIONS FOR DIRECTORS
» Has our organization experienced greater shareholder activism in the last year, and if so, how have we responded?

» Has our company done a good job of anticipating and addressing shareholder concerns? Has our approach changed
in recent years?

» Are we leveraging internal audit’s independent assurance and advice to identify and assess shareholder activism, as
well as ESG risks/opportunities?

» Does our full board routinely hear internal audit findings, recommendations, and reports?

Tone at the Top  |   February 2022

                                             68

www.theiia.org/tone
mailto:tone%40theiia.org?subject=


Tone at the Top   |   December 2021 Powered by   

Fighting the Fatigue

While pandemic fatigue is an understandable response to a challenging time, boards should be alert not only to backsliding on 
corporate governance, but also to the need to take proactive steps to advance quality in this area. Additionally, they should consider 
how well their companies are anticipating and addressing shareholders’ calls for greater accountability and change—especially 
regarding ESG concerns. Boards can turn to their internal audit function for valuable and objective assurance and advice on the best 
way to succeed in their efforts to enhance the quality of corporate governance. 

Tone at the Top  |   February 2022

Figure 1 - Source: PwC’s 2021 Annual  
Corporate Directors Survey

Guiding Principles of Corporate Governance

Principles 2021 2020 2019

Principle 1: Effective corporate governance requires regular and constructive 
interaction among key stakeholders, the board, management, internal audit, legal 
counsel, and external audit and other advisors.

B- (82) B (83) C+ (79)

Principle 2: The board should ensure that key stakeholders are identified and, 
where appropriate, stakeholder feedback is regularly solicited to evaluate whether 
corporate policies meet key stakeholders’ needs and expectations.

B- (80) B (86) B- (81)

Principle 3: Board members should act in the best interest of the company and 
the shareholders while balancing the interests of other key external and internal 
stakeholders. 

B- (83) B (85) B- (80)

Principle 4: The board should ensure that the company maintains a sustainable 
strategy focused on long-term performance and value.

C+ (77) C+ (79) C (75)

Principle 5: The board should ensure that the culture of the company is healthy, 
regularly monitor and evaluate the company’s core culture and values, assess the 
integrity and ethics of senior management, and, as needed, intervene to correct 
misaligned corporate objectives and culture.

B (85) B (86) B- (82)

Principle 6: The board should ensure that structures and practices exist and are 
well-governed so that it receives timely, complete, relevant, accurate, and reliable 
information to perform its oversight effectively.

C+ (79) C+ (79) C+ (78)

Principle 7: The board should ensure that corporate disclosures are consistently 
transparent and accurate, and in compliance with legal requirements, regulatory 
expectations, and ethical norms. 

B (84) B (85) B (83)

Principle 8: Companies should be purposeful and transparent in choosing and 
describing their key policies and procedures related to corporate governance to 
allow key stakeholders an opportunity to evaluate whether the chosen policies 
and procedures are optimal for the specific company. 

B (84) B (85) B (83)

                                             69

https://www.pwc.com/us/en/services/governance-insights-center/library/annual-corporate-directors-survey.html
https://www.pwc.com/us/en/services/governance-insights-center/library/annual-corporate-directors-survey.html


Tone at the Top   |   December 2021 Powered by   

Copyright © 2022 by The Institute of Internal Auditors, Inc. All rights reserved.

2022-4011

About the ACGI

The ACGI, now in its third year, is a collaborative effort by The Institute 
of Internal Auditors and the Neel Corporate Governance Center. 
It surveyed 86 chief audit executives (CAEs) of publicly listed U.S. 
companies on how well their organizations performed on meeting 
eight Guiding Principles of Corporate Governance (see the box on 
previous page). The results can help boards, audit committees, and 
other stakeholders gain perspective on common governance problem 
areas.  

The index is based on responses to a survey of CAEs or those best 
positioned for an independent, unbiased, and enterprisewide 
assessment of a company’s governance practices. The Guiding 
Principles are based on a compendium of relevant guidance and 
principles advanced by experts in the field. The index gauges the 
extent to which companies are effectively achieving each of the 
Guiding Principles. It goes beyond the publicly observable aspects of 
corporate governance to provide an internal perspective on the 
effectiveness of corporate governance throughout the organization. 

1 2021 U.S. Shareholder Activism Review, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, 
December 20, 2021. 
2 “Boards Can Prepare for Expected Wave of Activism,” Chris Ruggeri, 
Maureen Bujno, Joel Schlachtenhaufen, and Annie Adams, The Wall 
Street Journal CFO Journal. 
3 NACD 2022 Governance Outlook, 2021. 
4 “Recent Shareholder Activism Trends,” Shearman & Sterling LLP, posted 
on Harvard Law School Forum on Corporate Governance, November 29, 
2021. 
5 Institutional Investor Survey 2021, Morrow Sodali, May 11, 2021. 

QUICK POLL RESULTS
Is corporate governance in your 

organization healthy enough to manage 

new risk challenges, such as ESG?

Source: Tone at the Top December 2021 Survey.

Yes, absolutely

We may struggle a bit

We do not manage

I don’t know

23%

54%

15%

9%

Tone at the Top  |   February 2022

Quick Poll Question

Given the effects of the pandemic, how has the 
quality of corporate governance fared in your 
organization in the past year?

❏ Improved

❏ Unchanged

❏ Worsened

❏ Don’t know

Visit www.theiia.org/Tone to answer the question 
and learn how others are responding. 

                                             70

https://www.sullcrom.com/2021-us-shareholder-activism-review-and-analysis#:~:text=Public%20activism%20levels%20increased%20during,up%20approximately%2028%25%20through%20August
https://deloitte.wsj.com/articles/boards-can-prepare-for-expected-wave-of-activism-01617649327
https://www.nacdonline.org/insights/publications.cfm?ItemNumber=73019
https://morrowsodali.com/insights/institutional-investor-survey-2021
www.theiia.org/tone
https://corpgov.law.harvard.edu/2021/11/29/recent-shareholder-activism-trends/



